METRO ATLANTA Nursing Home and Assisted Living Guide

Seventh Edition

Navigating the long-term care maze: Practical solutions on how to find, get and pay for good long-term care.





Navigating the difficult and complex world of caring for a loved one can become a full-time job. It becomes even harder when it is apparent that a family member or loved one can no longer care for him or herself. Perhaps the loved one has a progressive disease like Alzheimer's, or the person may have had a stroke or a fall.

Difficult choices have to be made, and often those responsible for making decisions are emotionally and physically drained. We encourage you to stay hopeful and understand that good information is available to help you make the right choices for your family.

Working daily with families who face similar challenges inspired us to design this booklet. This is meant to act as a compass, a guide of sorts, with information and answers to many of the questions you may have.

We hope you find this useful as you determine how to find, get and pay for good long-term care.

Kindly, Miles Hurley, JD, CELA

Table of Contents

Selecting a Nursing Home	6
Evaluating a Nursing Home	7
Nursing Home Admission	9
How to Get Good Care in a Nursing Home	
Care Planning	
Medicaid Planning – Overview	
Some Common Questions	
Medicaid Planning for Individuals	
Medicaid Planning for Married Couples	
Why Plan for Medicaid?	
-	
Metro-Atlanta Nursing Homes (by county)	
Barrow	
Bartow	
Bibb	
Butts	
Carroll	
Cherokee Clarke	
Clarke	
Cobb	
Cobb	
Colquitt	
Dawson	
DeKalb	
Denald	
Fannin	
Fayette	
Floyd	
Forsyth	
Fulton	
Gilmer	
Gordon	
Gwinnett	
Hall	
Haralson	
Heard	
Henry	
Lumpkin	
, Madison	
Meriwether	26
Muscogee	
Newton	
Oconee	26
Paulding	27
Pickens	27

Rockdale	.27
Spalding	.27
Walton	.27
White	27
Evaluating an Assisted Living Community	
Metro-Atlanta Assisted Living Communities & Personal Care Homes (by county)	
Barrow	29
Bartow	29
Bibb	-30
Butts	30
Carroll	30
Cherokee	-31
Clarke	31
Clayton	32
Cobb	-33
Colquitt	34
Coweta	34
Dawson	34
DeKalb34-	-35
Douglas	35
Fannin	35
Fayette	36
Floyd	36
Forsyth	-37
Fulton	-39
Gilmer	.39
Gordon	-41
Gwinnett	41
Hall	41
Haralson	41
Heard	41
Henry41-	-42
Lumpkin	.42
Meriwether	.42
Muscogee	.42
Newton	.42
Oconee	.43
Paulding	.43
Pickens	.43
Rockdale	.43
Spalding	.44
Walton	
Seeking Legal Help	.45

▲ Selecting a Nursing Home

When someone is faced with the overwhelming job of finding a nursing home for a loved one, the question often asked is, "Where do I begin?" Although this is a job that no one wants to do, it can be done with confidence that the best decision was made for everyone involved.



Identify what is most important

When placement is necessary, it is crucial that the family and/ or potential resident decide what's most important to them in looking for a facility. The resident's needs and wants should be included in this evaluation. Things such as location of the facility, necessity of a special care unit, and source of payment have to be considered when beginning this process.

The next step is to identify the facilities in your area that meet the criteria you established above. This guide provides a list of skilled nursing facilities in the metro Atlanta area and surrounding counties.

If placement is "down the road" and you have time, call the nursing facilty and request an information packet, activity calendar and a menu. Beyond this guide, listings of facilities can be obtained from:

- Medicare's Nursing Home Compare
 www.medicare.gov/NursingHomeCompare/
- Georgia Healthcare Facility Regulator (404) 657-5700 www.GAMap2Care.info
- Georgia Long-Term Care Ombudsman Resource Center (404) 657-5327 www.georgiaombudsman.org

• Prepare to visit the facilities in person

Plan to visit twice, once scheduled and then another time unscheduled.

- For the scheduled visit, contact the Admissions Coordinator at each facility to set up a time to meet with them.
- For the second visit, just show up in the evening or on the weekend to see if there is a drastic difference in the atmosphere of the facility or the care being provided.
- It is important to tour at least two facilities so you can see the difference in the physical plan and the staff.

When you are touring pay attention to your gut feeling. Ask yourself the following questions:

- Did I feel welcome?
- How long did I have to wait to meet with someone?
- Did the staff member find out my family member's wants and needs?
- Was the facility clean?
- Were there any strong odors?
- Was the staff friendly?
- Did they seem to generally care for the residents?
- Did the staff seem to get along with each other?

Listen and observe. You can learn so much just by watching and paying attention.

Ask any questions that come to mind. There are no "dumb" questions.



As you visit nursing homes, take the time to download the nursing home evaluations form at www.hurleyeclaw.com/resources.



Use a separate form for each place you visit. Don't expect every nursing home to score well on every question. The presence or absence of any of these items does not automatically mean a facility is good or bad; each has its own strengths and weaknesses. Simply consider what is most important to your family member and you. Record your observations for each question by circling a number from one to five and then total up the score.

Your ratings will help you compare nursing homes and choose the best one for your situation. But don't rely simply on the numbers.

- Ask to speak to family members of other residents.
- Medicare offers information for nursing homes participating in Medicare. This is called "Nursing Home Compare" and can be found at <u>medicare.gov</u>. Medicare's Nursing Home Compare includes a five-star rating system for each facility. This rating system is based upon health inspections, staffing and quality measures. The Medicare Nursing Home Compare should be one of the many tools you use when selecting a nursing home. Do not use the Medicare Nursing Home Compare as your only source of information about a facility; always visit the facility in person.

		NURSING HOME EVALUATION FORM		
a esta		Name of Nursing Home:		_
의방장(크)	The Staff, Policies at		Den Barrison C	_
77 2 5 25	Does the administrator k friendly way?	The Building & Surroundings	1 PoorExcellent 5	
	Do staff and residents co	What is your first impression of the facility?	1 2 3 4 5	1 2 3 4 5
A 2011	Do staff and administrati cooperation?	What is the condition of the facility's exterior paint, gutters and trim?	1 2 3 4 5	1 2 3 4 5
= 11/2/2/2/4/4	Do residents get perman	Are the grounds pleasant and well kept?	1 2 3 4 5	re- 1 2 3 4 5
210029-121	Do nursing assistants par	Do you like the view from residents' rooms and other windows?	1 2 3 4 5	1 2 3 4 5
	How good is the nursing	Do residents with Alzheimer's disease live in a separate memory care unit?	1 2 3 4 5	1 2 3 4 5
	Does a state ombudsman			1 2 3 4 5
	Are there any current de	Does the nursing home provide a secure outdoor area?	1 2 3 4 5	1 2 3 4 5
	What is the kitchen's heat How likely is an increase	Is there a secure area where a resident with Alzheimer's disease can safely wander on walking paths?	1 2 3 4 5	
	Are there any additional	Are there appropriate areas for physical therapy and occupational therapy?	1 2 3 4 5	
		Are facilities for barber or beauty salon services available?	1 2 3 4 5	ant to 1 2 3 4 5
	Residents' Concerns	Does your loved one smoke? Is there a designated area for smokers?	1 2 3 4 5	t? 1 2 3 4 5
	What method is used in	What is your impression of general cleanliness throughout the facility?	1 2 3 4 5	1 2 3 4 5
	What is a typical day like	Does the facility smell clean?	1 2 3 4 5	1 2 3 4 5
	Can residents choose wh	Uses the racility smell clean r	1 2 5 4 5	1 2 3 4 5
	Are meaningful activities	is there enough space in resident rooms and common areas for the number or resi- dents?	1 2 3 4 5	1 2 3 4 5
	If activities are in progres	How noisy are hallways and common areas?	1 2 3 4 5	that 1 2 3 4 5
	Can residents continue to with pets?	Is the dining area clean and pleasant?	1 2 3 4 5	
	Does the nursing home p	Is there room around tables for both residents and aides assisting with meals?	1 2 3 4 5	Total Score
	Is a van or bus with when	Are residents allowed to bring pieces of furniture and other personal items to deco-		Total Score
	Do residents on Medical physical therapies if need	rate their rooms?	1 2 3 4 5	
	What is your impression			
	How are decisions about bathing made?	© 2019, Hurley Elder Care Law. All rights reserved.	Page 27	
	How do residents get the			
	What happens when clothing	or other items are missing? 1 2 3 4 5	-	
	Page 28	© 2019, Hurley Elder Care Law. All rights reserved.	-	
	_	© 2019, Hurley Elder Care Law. All rights	reserved.	Page 29

Once a facility has been chosen, there are some definite steps you can take to make the process less stressful on the resident.

- **First, plan the move carefully.** If you know the resident becomes very difficult to deal with in the late afternoon, plan the admission for mid-morning.
- Next, complete the admission paperwork before your loved one actually moves into the facility. This will allow you to spend the first few hours there getting settled and making him/her feel secure in the new living environment.
- There are some practical things you want to be sure to do, like:
 - Marking every piece of clothing with a permanent laundry marker.
 - If you are going to do your loved one's laundry, post a sign on the closet door to notify staff and provide a laundry bag where dirty clothes can be placed.
 - Also, bring in familiar things for the resident so that there is a feeling of home. However, realize that space is limited especially in a semi-private room.

A very important thing for you to remember is that the staff of the facility is just meeting your loved one for the first time. They do not know his or her likes or dislikes, or those little nuances that make caregiving go smoother.

• The best way you can help your loved one is to tell the staff, in writing, as much information as possible about your loved one (e.g., his/her likes and dislikes, typical daily schedule, pet peeves, and so on).

It is important that you get to know the people who are caring for your loved one.

- Most importantly, stay involved. Let everyone know how much you care and how committed you are to your loved one's care.
- Also understand you will not help your loved one by becoming anxious or overly emotional.



Nursing Home Admission

Generally, individuals are admitted to a nursing home in one of two ways.

1. Needing sub-acute rehab after a stay in a hospital...

The first, and most common way, is by being admitted to a nursing home following a three-night stay in a hospital whereupon the doctor feels that the patient needs subacute rehabilitation services in order to maintain or improve functioning. Rehabilitation services can include physical therapy, occupational therapy, speech therapy, wound therapy or skilled nursing care. Medicare Part A pays for certain rehabilitation services for a short period of time. (See page 11 for more information on Medicare.) Admission to a nursing home is generally arranged by the social worker or discharge planner at the hospital in consultation with the patient and family.

2. Finding a long-term care bed from home or assisted living

The second way that individuals enter a nursing home is from home, assisted or independent living. This means that the individual is seeking a long-term care bed, not a sub-acute rehab bed.

Finding a nursing home that will accept an individual for long-term care (and not for sub-acute rehab) can be difficult. Most nursing homes do not have an abundant supply of long-term care beds, so individuals seeking a bed may be placed on a waiting list. Without having a social worker or discharge planner to help with the admission, most families have to handle the paperwork on their own.

Finding a bed takes time and persistence. Once families have visited nursing homes and have selected their top three to five choices, staying in contact with the Admissions Coordinator is very important. Provide them with the forms and medical records they need and explain your loved one's needs. Here are the forms that families must provide to a nursing home in order for the facility to consider an individual for admission:

- Physician order for nursing home care (this will be a written order in addition to two state-mandated forms called the Level-1 and the DMA-6). These forms are effective for 30 days from completion.
- a current list of medications;
- a negative TB test or a clear chest x-ray;
- latest medical records
- physical, or clinical notes from a healthcare professional.

Some facilities may require more information as they are trying to determine if they can adequately meet the potential resident's needs.

How to Get Good Care in a Nursing Home

Once your loved one has entered a nursing home, your key role is as an advocate for your loved one's care. The best way to accomplish this is to keep in frequent communication with the nursing home staff.

During the initial assessment process, you can help by making a list of your loved one's needs and giving the list to the staff. For example, you may have noticed signs of depression along with symptoms of Alzheimer's. The staff may not notice these signs since they do not know your loved one, so your input will be invaluable.

Your loved one will have a period of adjustment when entering a nursing home. Not only will they need time to get used to new surroundings, it will take time for the staff to get to know them. Frequent communication with the staff will let you know how they are adjusting.

At some point in time you will have a concern about your loved one's care. Here are some suggestions to help you.

- Familiarize yourself with the complaint process at the facility.
- Identify the problem.
- Keep notes with specific dates, names and incidents.
- Share the problem with appropriate people based on the complaint process.
- Suggest some ideas in solving the problem.
- Request a care plan meeting if the problem is not resolved.
- Contact the Long-term Care Ombudsman.

Care Planning

The care planning process begins with a baseline assessment. This assessment occurs soon after a resident enters the nursing home, certainly within the first two weeks.

A team from the nursing home which may include a doctor, nurse, social worker, dietitian and physical, occupational or recreational therapist uses information from both the resident and the family about the resident's medical and emotional needs to create a comprehensive plan of care.

This baseline assessment then becomes the yardstick against which the caregivers can measure the resident's progress. A care plan meeting will be held on a quarterly basis or when any significant change occurs. You can request a care plan meeting at any time.

The team asks family members about the resident's medical, psychological, spiritual and social needs. You can also contribute information about your loved one's preferences and usual routine. For example, you might tell the staff, "Dad likes to listen to the radio as he falls asleep. He's been doing this since I was a child."

S How to pay for the nursing home

One of the things that concerns most people about nursing home care is how to pay for it. There are basically four ways that you can pay for the cost of a nursing home:

- 1. Use Long-Term Care Insurance If you are fortunate enough to have this type of coverage, it may go toward paying for the cost of the nursing home.
- 2. Pay with your own funds This is the method many people choose first. Quite simply, it means paying for the cost of a nursing home out of your pocket. Unfortunately, with nursing home bills averaging between \$8,000 and \$12,000 per month in our area, few people can afford a long-term stay in a nursing home.
- 3. Apply for VA Assistance This type of benefit may be available to someone over sixty-five years of age or disabled with wartime military service or is a surviving spouse of someone with wartime service. Hurley Elder Care Law attorneys are accredited with the VA to provide more information on VA special pensions.
- 4. Apply for Medicaid This is a primarily federally funded and state administered program that pays for the cost of the nursing home if certain asset and income requirements are met. Over 80% of nursing home resident receiving long-term care services rely on Medicaid to pay the bill.



What is Medicaid?

Medicaid is a needs-based public benefits program that is primarily funded by the federal government and administered by each state. The Medicaid program will help pay for long-term custodial care in a skilled nursing facility. It is the resident's responsibility to contribute his/ her monthly income toward the cost of care and the remaining charges are paid by Medicaid. Custodial care refers to assistance with the activities of daily living (i.e., activities like dressing, bathing, toileting, preparing meals and so on).



What About Medicare?

There is a great deal of confusion about Medicare and Medicaid. Medicare is the federally funded health insurance program designed for individuals over age 65 or who receive SSDI. There is a VERY limited long-term care component to Medicare. In general, if you have had a hospital inpatient stay of at least three days, and then you need to go into a skilled nursing facility (often for rehabilitation), then Medicare may pay for a while with a daily deductible.

If you have met these criteria, Medicare will pay the full cost of the nursing home stay for the first 20 days and will continue to pay the cost of the nursing home stay for the next 80 days, but with a deductible each day. In order to qualify for 100 days of coverage, however, the nursing home resident must continue to meet Medicare criteria. It is never possible to predict how long Medicare will cover the "rehabilitation." From our experience it often falls far short of the 100-day maximum. Also be aware that if you have a Medicare Advantage plan or employer-based secondary, your coverage may be even more limited.

? Some Common Questions

Q Don't you have to be extremely poor to get Medicaid?

As life expectancies and long-term care costs continue to rise, the challenge quickly becomes how to pay for these services. Many people cannot afford to pay \$8,000–12,000 per month or more for the cost of a nursing home. Even those who can pay for a while may find their life savings wiped out in a matter of months, rather than years. Fortunately, the Medicaid Program is there to help. In fact, in our lifetime, Medicaid has become the long-term care insurance of the middle class. Eligibility for nursing home Medicaid is based on both your income and assets, and the income cap for Medicaid eligibility is \$2,829 per month (as of 2024.) Monthly income of \$3,000 is not enough to pay for the \$8,000–12,000 bill at the nursing home, but it looks like a person cannot qualify for nursing home Medicaid if they make over \$2,829 per month. In cases like this, where a resident's income is more than the income cap, that resident must use a Qualified Income Trust (QIT) to be qualified for Medicaid. Contact a Certified Elder Law Attorney (CELA) to learn more about the Qualified Income Trust.

Q What about Assets?

To qualify for Medicaid, you must meet the asset requirements. To understand how Medicaid works, we first need to review what are known as exempt and non-exempt (or countable) assets.

Exempt Assets

Exempt assets are those that Medicaid will not include in the asset total to determine eligibility. In Georgia, the following are the primary exempt assets:

- **Home Place:** The applicant's house and all adjoining land and all buildings on the property are excluded from resources if the equity value of the home is \$713,000 or less. (No limit if married.)
- **Household Goods:** Household items including furniture, decorations, art, and appliances are excluded.
- **Burial Exclusion:** The applicant and his/her spouse can each have up to \$10,000 designated for burial expenses. This can consist of a prepaid funeral contract with a funeral home or funds designated for burial in a bank account. The face value of life insurance is applied toward the burial exclusion amount first.
- **Burial Space Items:** Burial plots for the applicant and immediate family are excluded as well as certain other items at the burial site. There is no dollar limit on the cost or value of the burial space items.

- Life Estate Interests: The applicant's life estate interests are excluded.
- **Automobiles:** One automobile is excluded regardless of value and whether or not it is in use. Note that junked or recreational vehicles are counted as resources.
- **Personal Items:** Personal items such as clothing and jewelry are excluded.
- **Retirement Funds:** Retirement funds such as IRAs and 401(k)s are excludable resources if they are being distributed in periodic payments that include a portion of principal. These payments are counted as income in the month received.
- Non-marketable Assets: Assets are excluded if the applicant is making a bona fide effort to sell the asset. A bona fide effort may be evidenced by an advertisement in the newspaper or a listing with a real estate agent. The property must be listed for no more than its current value, and the applicant must accept an offer if it is at least 2/3 of the current value.

Countable Assets

Basically, all money and property and any item that can be valued and turned into cash is a countable asset unless it is one of those assets listed above as exempt. This includes the following:

- Life Insurance Policies: The cash value of whole . life or other life insurance policies is counted as a resource if the burial exclusion maximum has been reached with other assets.
- Investments: Stocks, bonds, mutual funds
- **Checking Accounts**
- **Savings Accounts**
- **Certificates of Deposit**
- **Money Market Accounts**

While the Medicaid rules themselves are complicated and tricky, for a single person it is safe to say that he or she will qualify for Medicaid so long as the total assets are either exempt and/or are less than \$2,000 (the current limit in Georgia).

Q I have added my children's names to our bank account. Do they still count?

Yes. The entire amount is counted unless you can prove that some or all of the money was contributed by the other person who is on the account. This rule applies to cash assets such as:

- Savings and checking accounts
- Credit union share and draft accounts
- Certificates of deposit
- **U.S. Savings Bonds** •

Q Can I just give my assets away?

Giving may be possible; however, it is critically important that you have the advice of an elder care attorney well versed in Medicaid rules.

The law has severe penalties for people who simply give away their assets to create Medicaid eligibility. There is a look-back period of five years. In Georgia, for example, every \$9584 (as of 2023) given away during the lookback period prior to a Medicaid application creates a one-month period of ineligibility.

Though some families do spend virtually all of their savings on nursing home care, Medicaid does not require it. There are a number of strategies that can be used to protect your family's financial security.

Q Will I Lose My Home?

Onder the Medicaid regulations, the home is an exempt asset (so long as the equity value is less than \$713,000). This means its value is not taken into account when calculating eligibility for Medicaid benefits, but the home may be vulnerable to Estate Recovery after the person dies. When Medicaid helps pay for nursing home care, the state must attempt to recoup from the beneficiary's estate whatever amount was paid on the resident's behalf; this is called estate recovery. Since Medicaid rules limit the number and amount of assets a resident can own, the only property of substantial value that a Medicaid recipient is likely to own at death is his or her home. The good news is there are ways that a home can be protected from estate recovery.

Let's take a look at some of the most common.

Transfer the house to another person before **applying for Medicaid:** There are circumstances in which a transfer of a house is not subject to the 5-year lookback period for asset transfers. Transfers of the home can be made to a spouse, a child who is either disabled, blind or under 21, or a caretaker child (a child who has lived in the house and provided care for at least two years prior to the applicant's institutionalization).

Sell the House: You can sell the house to another family member-thereby keeping it in the family but away from Medicaid Estate Recovery. Either option requires intense and measured planning in order to protect the maximum amount from Medicaid Estate Recovery and to ensure Medicaid eligibility.

The rules are tricky so prior to implementing an estate recovery strategy it is wise to consult with a Certified Elder Law Attorney.

Q What if my income is over the Medicaid limits?

If your income is over the Medicaid income limit, a Certified Elder Law Attorney can help you set up a Qualified Income Trust (QIT) which can help you meet the Medicaid income requirement.

Q Will the Nursing Home apply for Medicaid for me and make sure my insurance covers everything?

Medicare doesn't cover long-term care. Seek advice from a Certified Elder Law Attorney immediately to learn how the Medicaid application and eligibility process works. The nursing home may assist with the

paperwork, but it's your responsibility to compete the forms and give them the required information. If the Medicaid application is processed incorrectly or denied, you may be left with the bill.

Medicaid Planning for Individuals

When an individual has income and assets that exceed the Medicaid threshold there are options available to avoid a spend down or a Medicaid denial. A Certified Elder Law Attorney can help you implement a plan that allows an individual to qualify for Georgia Nursing Home Medicaid, and preserving a substantial portion of their assets.

Income and Asset Requirements

Eligibility for nursing home Medicaid is based on both your income and assets. In 2024 the income cap for Medicaid eligibility is \$2,829 per month. If your monthly income exceeds \$2,829 you can still qualify for Medicaid by utilizing a Qualified Income Trust (QIT), also known as a Miller trust. For a single person to qualify for Medicaid their total assets must be less than \$2,000.

CASE STUDY #1: Medicaid Planning for a Single Person

Margaret is a 75-year-old widow living on her own in Canton, Georgia. She suffered a series of strokes and was hospitalized for several weeks. After months of rehabilitation, it became clear that Margaret could no longer live at home. Margaret's doctor recommended long-term care in a Skilled Nursing Facility. After a meeting with the financial counselor at the nursing home, her daughter Susan contacted an elder law attorney to discuss Margaret's situation.

- Income \$2,950
- Checking Account \$6,000
- Money Market \$40,000
- House (no mortgage) \$100,000
- Car (Chevrolet Impala, no note)
- Life Insurance \$10,000 policy, \$17,000 cash value
- IRA \$25,000
- Previous Gifts \$18,300

Margaret's daughter met with an elder law attorney and was relieved to find out that, in fact, her mother could qualify for Medicaid. The attorney explained that her house, car and IRA are exempt for Medicaid qualification purposes. They also explained that mom would need to establish a Qualified Income Trust because her income of \$2,950 per month exceeds Medicaid's income cap of \$2,829 (2024 limit). The attorney detailed that the previous gifts would create a three-month penalty period for Medicaid qualification and Margaret's daughter was thrilled to discover that, with proper planning, she could preserve roughly 60% of the \$54,000 plus the \$18,300 previously gifted.

Medicaid Planning for Married Couples

In Georgia, the at-home or community spouse is allowed to keep all countable assets up to \$154,140 (as of 2024). The amount of the countable assets which the at-home spouse gets to keep is called the Community Spouse Resource Allowance (CSRA).

Each state also establishes a monthly income floor for the at-home spouse. This is called the Community Spouse Maintenance Needs Standard (CSMNS). This permits the community spouse to keep a minimum monthly income of up to \$3,853.50 (as of 2024).

If the community spouse does not have at least \$3,853.50 in income, then he or she is allowed to take the income of the nursing home spouse in an amount large enough to reach the CSMNS (i.e., up to \$3,853.50/ mo). The nursing home spouse's remaining income goes to the nursing home. This avoids the necessity (hopefully) for the community spouse to dip into savings each month, which would result in gradual impoverishment. To illustrate, let's assume the community spouse receives \$800 per month in Social Security. Let's also assume that her spouse who is a nursing home resident has an income of \$3,500 per month from Social Security and his pension.

\$3,853.50 CSMNS

- 800.00 community spouse's income

\$3,053.50 amount to be diverted to community spouse

In this case, the community spouse will receive \$3,053.50 per month from the nursing home spouse's Social Security and pension and the rest of the nursing home spouse's income will then go to pay for the cost of his care. The nursing home spouse does get to keep a monthly personal needs allowance: a whopping \$70!

Once again, this does not mean that there are no other planning alternatives that the couple can pursue. Consider the following case studies.

CASE STUDY #2: Medicaid Planning for Married People

Ralph and Alice were high school sweethearts who lived in Smyrna, Georgia their entire adult lives. Two weeks ago Ralph and Alice celebrated their 51st Anniversary. Yesterday Ralph, who has Alzheimer's disease, wandered away from home. Hours later he was found sitting on a street curb, talking incoherently. He was taken to a hospital where he is being treated for dehydration. The family doctor tells Alice she needs to place Ralph in a nursing home. They both grew up during the Depression and have always tried to save something each month. Their assets, totaling \$202,000 not including their house, are as follows:

Savings Account	\$50,000
CDs	\$100,000
Money Market Account	\$50,000
Checking Account	\$12,000
Residence (no mortgage)	\$80,000

Ralph gets Social Security and pension checks totaling \$1500 each month; Alice's Social Security check is \$450. If Alice and Ralph have to pay the private pay rate to the nursing home, their entire life savings will be gone in less than two years! What's more, Alice is afraid she won't be able to pay her monthly bills, because a neighbor told her that the nursing home will be entitled to all of Ralph's Social Security and pension checks. There is good news for Alice. It's possible she will get to keep her income, most if not all of his income and most of their assets and still have the state Medicaid program pay Ralph's nursing home costs. While the process may take a little while, the end result will be worth it.

To apply for Medicaid, she will have to go through the Georgia Department of Family and Children Services (DFCS). If she does things strictly according to the way DFCS tells her, she will only be able to keep her home and \$154,140 of their assets plus she will be entitled to a minimum monthly income to pay her expenses.

But the results can actually be much better than the traditional spend-down, which everyone talks about. Alice might be able to turn the spend-down amount of roughly \$55,000 into an income stream that will increase her income and meet the Medicaid spend-down amount. In other words, if handled properly, Ralph might be eligible for Medicaid from the first month he goes into the nursing home.

Please note that this will not work in every case. That is why it is important to have a Certified Elder Law Attorney (CELA) guide you through the system and the Medicaid process to find the strategies that will be most beneficial in your situation. Alice will have to get advice from someone who knows how to navigate the system, but with proper advice she will be able to keep most of what she and Ralph have worked so hard for. This is possible because the law does not intend to impoverish one spouse because the other spouse needs care in a nursing home. This is certainly an example where knowledge of the rules and how to apply them can be used to resolve Ralph and Alice's dilemma. Of course, proper Medicaid planning differs according to the relevant facts and circumstances of each situation.

$\overrightarrow{\subset}_{\Box \rightarrow}^{\Box \supset}$ Why Plan for Medicaid?

As life expectancies and long-term care costs continue to rise, the challenge quickly becomes how to pay for these services. Many people cannot afford to pay \$8,000-\$12,000 per month or more for the cost of a nursing home. Even those who can pay for a while may find their life savings wiped out in a matter of months, rather than years. The eligibility requirements for Medicaid benefits force you to meet certain financial requirements. These tests place limits on the amount of income and assets that you can have. The reason for Medicaid planning is simple... you plan so that if you need it, you will be eligible to receive Medicaid benefits.

IN CONCLUSION

As you can see, there are a number of strategies that you can use to qualify for Medicaid and still preserve some or all of the estate you have spent a lifetime building. These strategies are legal. They are moral. They are ethical. Please be advised, however, that Medicaid planning requires a great deal of knowledge on the ins and outs of the system. Work with an experienced Certified Elder Law Attorney who knows the rules and can advise you accordingly.

In the previous pages we have talked about how to find the right nursing home, how to get good care there, and how to pay for it without going broke. But where do you actually start looking? Where should you begin your search? To assist you, we have compiled a list of the nursing homes and assisted living communities in Metro-Atlanta, arranged according to county. The listings contain the name and address of the facility along with the telephone number.

Finally, we have noted whether the facility has specialized services. Once you have determined which facilities to tour, you can then use our evaluation tool found at www.hurleyeclaw.com/resources to help you compare them.

These listings were compiled in late 2023 and some information may have changed after verification.

		ONSITE SERVICES	D DIALYSIS	5 () TRACHS	V ENTS	B BARIATRIC	0 LC	CKED U	JNITS
BARROW COUN	ΙТΥ								
Winder Center for M (770) 867-2108	Nursing and Healin 263 E May Street,	-	30			0 (0	6	
BARTOW COUN	ТҮ								
Cartersville Center (770) 382-6120	for Nursing and H 78 Opal Street, Ca		0120						
Maple Ridge Health (770) 606-8800	Care Center 22 Maple Ridge D	rive S.E., Carters	ville, GA 30	120				•	0
Townsend Park Hea (770) 387-0662	alth and Rehabilit a 196 North Dixie A		lle, GA 3012	20				•	0
BIBB COUNTY									
Archway Transition (478) 216-5660	al Care Center 4373 Houston Ave	enue, Macon, GA	31206			Ũ		(0
Carlyle Place (478) 405-4500	5300 Zebulon Roa	ad, Macon, GA 31	1210						
Cherry Blossom He (478) 781-7553	alth and Rehabilit 3520 Kenneth Dri		1206					6	
Eastview Nursing C (478) 746-3547	enter 3020 Jeffersonvill	e Road, Macon, (GA 31217					0	
Fountain Blue Reha (478) 788-1421	b and Nursing 3051 Whiteside Re	oad, Macon, GA S	31216					0	
Macon Rehabilitati (478) 743-8687	on and Healthcare 505 Coliseum Driv		217			C		0	
Medical Manageme (478) 743-4678	nt Health and Reh 1509 Cedar Ave, M		ŀ					6	
Pruitthealth - Easts (478) 742-1117	i de 2795 Finney Circle	e, Macon, GA 312	217						
Pruitthealth - Maco (478) 784-7900	n 2255 Anthony Roa	ad, Macon, GA 31	1204			Ũ	V	•	0
Pruitthealth - Peak (478) 471-7474	e 6190 Peake Road,	Macon, GA 3122	20					6	
Zebulon Park Healt (478) 238-4000	h and Rehabilitati 343 Plantation Wa		1210						

		ONSITE SERVICES	D DIALYSIS	TRACHS	V ENTS	B BARIATRIC	0	LOCKED UNITS
BUTTS								
Westbury Center of (770) 775-7832	Jackson for Nursir 922 Mcdonough Ro		A 30233			O		0
CARROLL								
Carrollton Manor, Ir (770) 834-1737	icorporated 2455 Oak Grove Ch	uurch Road, Carr	rollton, GA 30	0117				0
Carrollton Nursing (770) 834-4404	& Rehab Ctr 2327 North Highwa	ay 27, Carrollton	n, GA 30117					
The Oaks - Carrollto (770) 834-3501	on Skilled Nursing 921 Old Newnan R	oad, Carrollton,	GA 30117					
Pine Knoll Nursing (770) 832-8243	& Rehab Ctr 156 Pine Knoll Driv	ve, Carrollton, G	A 30117					
CHEROKEE								
Canton Center for N (770) 479-8791	u rsing and Healing 321 Hospital Road,		114					
Cherokee Center fo (770) 479-5649	r Nursing and Heal i 150 Hospital Circle		A 30114			(0
Woodstock Nursing (770) 926-0016	& Rehab Ctr 105 Arnold Mill Roa	ad, Woodstock,	GA 30188					
CLARKE								
The Oaks - Athens S (706) 355-7400	killed Nursing 490 Kathwood Dr, <i>i</i>	Athens, GA 3060	07					
Pruitthealth - Ather (706) 549-1613	is Heritage 960 Hawthorne Av	enue, Athens, G	A 30606					6
Pruitthealth - Grand (706) 549-6013	lview 165 Winston Drive,	Athens, GA 306	50					
University Nursing (706) 549-5382	& Rehab Ctr 180 Epps Bridge Ro	d, Athens, GA 30	0606					
CLAYTON								
Arrowhead Health a (770) 478-3013	ind Rehab 239 Arrowhead Bo	ulevard, Jonesb	ooro, GA 3023	36		(0
Jonesboro Nursing (770) 473-4436	and Rehabilitation 2650 Highway 138		GA 30236					

(770) 473-4436 2650 Highway 138 SE, Jonesboro, GA 30236

ONSITE SERVICES **()** DIALYSIS **()** TRACHS **()** VENTS **()** BARIATRIC **()** LOCKED UNITS

CLAYTON (conti	nued)				
Lake City Nursing (404) 361-1028	, and Rehabilitation Center LLC 2055 Rex Road, Lake City, GA 30260		Û		C
Riverdale Center	for Nursing and Healing	D	Û	6	C
(770) 991-1050	315 Upper Riverdale Road, Riverdale, GA 30274				
СОВВ					
A.G. Rhodes Hom	e, Inc - Cobb				
(770) 427-8727	900 Wylie Road, Marietta, GA 30067				
Anderson Mill Ce	nter for Nursing and Healing LLC		00	6	
770) 941-8813	2130 anderson Mill Rd, Austell, GA 30106			_	
Autumn Breeze H	ealth and Rehab		Û	₿	
(770) 422-1755	1480 Sandtown Road SW, Marietta, GA 30008				
Delmar GArdens	of Smyrna				
(770) 432-4444	404 King Springs Village Pkwy, Smyrna, GA 30082				
	for Nursing and Healing LLC				
770) 971-5870	4360 Johnson Ferry Place, Marietta, GA 30068				
	or Nursing and Healing			₿	
(770) 422-2451	811 Kennesaw Avenue, Marietta, GA 30060				
Powder Springs (Center for Nursing & Healing	D		6	0
(770) 439-9199	3460 Powder Springs Road, Powder Springs, GA 30127				
Presbyterian Vill	age				
(770) 819-7000	2000 East-West Connector, Austell, GA 30106				
Pruitthealth - Au	stell				
(770) 941-5750	1700 Mulkey Rd, Austell, GA 30106				
Pruitthealth - Ma	rietta			₿	
(770) 429-8600	70 Saine Drive SW, Marietta, GA 30008				
Roselane Health	Center by Harborview				
(770) 792-9800	613 Roselane Street, Marietta, GA 30060				
Ross Memorial H	ealth Care Ctr		Ũ	6	
770) 427-7256	1780 Old Highway 41, Kennesaw, GA 30152				
Roswell Nursing	& Rehab Center				
(770) 998-1802	1109 Green Street, Roswell, GA 30075				
-	care at Tower Road		Û	0	
770) 422-8913	26 Tower Rd, Marietta, GA 30060				

	ONSITE SERVICES	D DIALYSIS	TRACHS	V ENTS	B BARIATRIC	LOCKED UNITS
COLQUITT						
Colquitt Regional S (229) 985-3637	Senior Care & Rehabilitation 101 Cobblestone Trace SE, Moultri	ie, GA 31768				
Pruitthealth - Magi (229) 985-3422	nolia Manor 3003 Veterans Parkway S, Moultrie	e, GA 31788				
Pruitthealth - Mou (229) 985-4320	l trie 233 Sunset Circle, Moultrie, GA 31	768				
Pruitthealth - Sunr (229) 985-7173	ise 2709 S Main Street, Moultrie, GA 3	1768				
COWETTA						
Ansley Park Health (770) 400-8000	and Rehabilitation 450 Newnan Lakes Blvd, Newnan,	GA 30263				6
Avalon Health and (770) 253-1475	Rehabilitation 120 Spring Street, Newnan, GA 30	263				60
Newnan Health an (770) 253-7160	d Rehabilitation 244 East Broad Street, Newnan, GA	A 30263				6
DAWSON						
Hill Haven Nursing (706) 336-8000	Home 880 Ridgeway Road, Commerce, G	A 30529				0
Northridge Health (706) 335-1300	& Rehabilitation 100 Medical Center Drive, Comme	rce, GA 30529	Э			
DEKALB						
A.G. Rhodes Home (404) 315-0900	Wesley Woods 1819 Clifton Road, N.E, Atlanta, GA	A 30329			D	60
Briarwood Health (770) 938-5740	Center by Harborview 3888 Lavista Road, Tucker, GA 300)84				6
Budd Terrace At We (404) 728-6500	esley Woods 1833 Clifton Road, NE, Atlanta, GA	30329				6
Decatur Center for (404) 296-5440	Nursing and Healing LLC 2722 North Decatur Road,D ecatur	r, GA 30033				6
East Lake Arbor (404) 373-6231	304 Fifth Avenue, Decatur, GA 300	30				6

ONSITE SERVICES **D** DIALYSIS **T** TRACHS **V** VENTS **B** BARIATRIC **D** LOCKED UNITS

DEKALB (contin	ued)			
Fountainview Ctr (404) 325-7994	r for Alzheimers 2631 North Druid Hills Road NE, Atlanta, GA 30329			
Georgia Regional (404) 243-2110	l Atlanta LTC 3073 Panthersville Rd, SNF Bldg. #17, Decatur, GA 30034		0	
Glenwood Health (404) 284-6414	Center by Harborview 4115 Glenwood Rd, Decatur, GA 30032	0 (00	
Harborview Deca (404) 292-0626	2787 North Decatur Road, Decatur, GA 30033		0	
Lenbrook (404) 233-3000				
Meadowbrook He (770) 491-9444	ealth and Rehab 4608 Lawrenceville Highway, Tucker, GA 30084	O	(
Pruitthealth - Bro (770) 451-0236	ookhaven 3535 Ashton Woods Drive NE, Atlanta, GA 3031		0	
Pruitthealth - De (404) 212-3400	catur 3200 Panthersville Road, Decatur, GA 30034			
Pruitthealth - Vir (404) 875-6456	ginia Park 1000 Briarcliff Road NE, Atlanta, GA 30306	Û		
Rosemont at Stor (770) 498-4144	ne Mountain 5160 Spring View Avenue, Stone Mountain, GA 30083	0	000	
Sandy Springs Ce (404) 252-2002	enter for Nursing and Healing LLC 1500 S Johnson Ferry Road, Atlanta, GA 30319		6	
Traditions Health (770) 482-2961	and Rehabilitation 2816 Evans Mill Road, Lithonia, GA 30058	Û	0	
	and Rehabilitation Center ad, Tucker, GA 30084 (770) 934-3172	00		
DOUGLAS				
Douglasville Nur (770) 942-7111	sing and Rehabilitation Center 4028 Hwy 5, Douglasville, GA 30135	0 (D	
FANNIN				

Pruitthealth - Blue Ridge

99 Ouida Street, Blue Ridge, GA 3051 (706) 632-2271

	ONSITE SERVICES D DIALYSIS T TRACHS VENTS BARIATRIC	locked UNITS
FAYETTE		
Fayetteville Center (770) 461-2928	for Nursing & Healing LLC 110 Brandywine Boulevard, Fayetteville, GA 30214	•
Southland Health a (770) 631-9000	nd Rehabilitation 151 Wisdom Road, Peachtree City, GA 30269	
FLOYD		
Chulio Hills Health (706) 235-1132	and Rehab 1170 Chulio Road, Rome, GA 30161	V
Etowah Landing (706) 235-1337	809 South Broad Street, Rome, GA 30161	00
Evergreen Health a (706) 378-3383	nd Rehabilitation Center 139 Moran Lake Road, NE, Rome, GA 30161	60
Fifth Avenue Health (706) 291-0521	Care 505 North Fifth Avenue, Rome, GA 30165	0
Harborview Rome (706) 234-8281	1345 Redmond Road, Rome, GA 30165	6
Magnolia Place Nur (706) 728-3600	sing and Rehabilitation 500 Eagle Lake Trail, Rome, GA 30165	
Pruitthealth - Rome (706) 236-6002	2 Three Mile Road NE, Rome, GA 30165	
Winthrop Health an (706) 235-1422	d Rehabilitation 12 Chateau Drive, Rome, GA 30161	0
FORSYTH		
Chestnut Ridge Nsg (770) 889-0120	& Rehab Ctr 125 Samaritan Drive, Cumming, GA 30040	0
Cumming Health & (770) 781-2300	Rehab 2775 Castleberry Road, Cumming, GA 30040	0
FULTON		
The A.G. Rhodes Ho (404) 688-6731	me, Inc. 350 Boulvard, S.E, Atlanta, GA 30312	
Bonterra Transition (404) 767-7591	al Care & Rehabilitation (2801 Felton Drive, East Point, GA 30344)	

ONSITE SERVICES **D** DIALYSIS **T** TRACHS **V** VENTS **B** BARIATRIC **D** LOCKED UNITS

Buckhead Center for Nursing and Healing404) 351-604154 Peachtree Park Drive N.E., Atlanta, GA 30309	O	Ũ	6	0
Christian City Rehabilitation Center770) 964-33017300 Lester Road, Union City, GA 30291			6	0
Crestview Health & Rehab Ctr404) 616-81002800 Springdale Road, Atlanta, GA 30315		Û		
Fairburn Health Care Center770) 964-1320178 West Campbellton Street, Fairburn, GA 30213		Û	6	
Fulton Center for Rehabilitation LLC404) 762-86722850 Springdale Road SW, Atlanta, GA 30315		Û	6	
Healthcare at College Park, LLC404) 767-86091765 Temple Avenue, College Park, GA 30337				
Legacy Transitional Care & Rehabilitation404) 523-1613460 Auburn Avenue N.E., Atlanta, GA 30312				0
Nurse Care of Buckhead404) 261-90432920 Pharr Court South NW, Atlanta, GA 30305				
Perimeter Rehabilitation Suites by Harborview404) 256-51315470 Meridian Mark Road, Bldg E, Atlanta, GA 30342	Ø	Ũ	6	
Pruitthealth - Fairburn				
770) 306-7878 7560 Butner Road, Fairburn, GA 30213				
Pruitthealth - West Atlanta 2645 Whiting Street NW, Atlanta, GA 30318,4047999267			6	
Reliable Health & Rehab at Lakewood 1980 Arrow Street, SW, Atlanta, GA 30310,4047554080			6	
Sadie G. Mays Health & Rehabilitation Center 1821 anderson Avenue NW, Atlanta, GA 30314,4047942477			6	
Nestminster Commons 560 St Charles Ave, NE, Atlanta, GA 30308,4048742233			6	0
The William Breman Jewish Home				•

GILMER

Parkside Center for Nursing and Rehab at Ellijay

(706) 635-7881 1362 South Main Street, Ellijay, GA 30540

		ONSITE SERVICES	D DIALYSIS	TRACHS	V ENTS	B BARIATRIC	() LO	OCKED UNITS
GORDON								
Calhoun Health Car (706) 629-1289	e Center 1387 Highway 41	North, Calhoun,	GA 30701					•
Gordon Health and (706) 625-0044	Rehabilitation 1280 Mauldin Roa	d NE, Calhoun, C	GA 30703					
GWINNETT								
Cambridge Post Acu (770) 978-7250	ite Care Center 2020 Mcgee Road	, Snellville, GA 3	0078					6
The D Scott Hudgen (770) 932-3472	s Center for Skille 3500 Annandale L	-	GA 30024					
Delmar Gardens of ((770) 923-3100	Gwinnett 3100 Club Drive, L	.awrenceville, GA	A 30044					
Life Care Center of ((770) 923-0005	Gwinnett 3850 Safehaven D	rive, Lawrencevi	ille, GA 30044	4				
Life Care Ctr of Law (678) 442-0777	renceville 210 Collins Indust	rial Way, Lawrer	nceville, GA 3	0045				6
Mesun Health and R (404) 367-1907	ehabilitation Cen 88 Johnson Road		wrenceville, C	GA 30046		Ũ	0	6
Parkside Post Acute (770) 972-2040 3000 I			30078					6
Pruitthealth - Lanie (770) 614-2800	r 2451 Peachtree Ir	idustrial Blvd, Bu	uford, GA 305	518				
Pruitthealth - Lilbun (770) 923-2020	r n 788 Indian Trail R	oad, Lilburn, GA	30047					
Salude - The Art of F (770) 904-3222	Recovery 601 Northolt Park	way, Suwanee, C	GA 30024					
HALL								
The Bell Minor Hom (770) 532-2066 2200 (-	NE, Gainesville,	,GA 30507					
New Horizons Lanie (770) 219-8300	r Park 675 White Sulphu	r Road Suite 190	, Gainesville,	GA 30501		Ũ		0
New Horizons Limes (770) 219-8600	s tone 2020 Beverly Road	d NE, Gainesville	e, GA 30501			Ũ		6

	ONSITE SERV	/ICES	D DIALYSIS	Û	TRACHS	V VENTS	B BAR	IATRIC	L 100	KED UNITS
HALL (continued)										
The Oaks - Limesto (770) 536-3391	e 2560 Flintridge Road, Gaines	ville,	GA 30501							
Willowbrooke Cour (678) 450-3005	at Lanier Village Estates 4145 Misty Morning Way, Gair	nesvi	ille, GA 3050	6						
Willowwood Health (770) 967-2070	care and Rehabilitation 4595 Cantrell Road, Flowery	Bran	ch, GA 30542	2						
HARALSON										
Buchanan Healthca (770) 646-5512	r e Center 144 Depot Street, Buchanan,	GA 3	30113							
Countryside Health (770) 646-3861	Center 233 Carrollton Street, Bucha	nan,	GA 30113					Û	(0
Haralson Nsg & Reh (770) 537-4482	ab Center 315 Field Street, Bremen, GA	301	10							0
HEARD										
Pruitthealth - Frank (706) 675-6674	lin 360 South River Road, Frankl	in, G	A 30217						(6
HENRY										
Laurel Park (770) 507-3840	1050 Hospital Drive, Stockbri	idge,	GA 30281						(0
Westbury Center of (770) 957-9081	Mcdonough for Nursing & He 198 Hampton Street, McDone		-							80
LUMPKIN										
Chelsey Park Healt (706) 482-3000	and Rehabilitation 200 Mountain Park Drive, Dal	hlone	ega, GA 3053	3					(0
Gold City Health an (706) 864-3045	l Rehab 222 Moore Drive, Dahlonega,	GA 3	30533							
MADISON										
Comer Health and F (706) 783-5116	ehabilitation 2430 Paoli Road,C omer, GA	3062	9					Û	(0

	ONSITE SERVICES	D DIALYSIS	TRACHS	V ENTS	B BARIATRIC	О LOCK	ED UNITS
MERIWETHER							
Pruitthealth - Green (706) 672-4241	vville 99 Hillhaven Rd., Greenville, GA 3	0222				G	•••
Warm Springs Medi (706) 655-3331	cal Center Nursing Home 5995 Spring Street, Warm Springs	,GA 31830					
MUSCOGEE							
Magnolia Manor of (706) 324-0387	Columbus Nursing Center - East 2010 Warm Springs Rd, Columbus	s, GA 31904					
Magnolia Manor of ((706) 324-2251	Columbus Nursing Center - West 2000 Warm Springs Rd, Columbus	s, GA 31904				e	•••
Muscogee Manor & 1 7150 Manor Road, Co	Rehabilitation Ctr olumbus, GA 31907 (706) 561-3218				D		0
Orchard View Rehal (706) 225-1100	bilitation & Skilled Nursing Ctr 8414 Whitesville Road, Columbus,	,GA 31907			0 ()	
Ridgecrest Rehab & (706) 330-5650	Skilled Nursing Center 8329 Stevens Lane, Columbus, GA	31909			0 ()	0
River Towne Center (706) 561-1371	5131 Warm Springs Rd, Columbus	s, GA 31909					
Spring Harbor at Gr (706) 576-6027	een Island 200 Spring Harbor Drive, Columbu	us, GA 31904					
NEWTON							
Pruitthealth - Covin (770) 786-0427	gton 4148 Carroll Street, Covington, GA	30015				6	•
Riverside Health Ca (770) 787-0211	re Center 5100 West St NW,Covington, GA 3	0014				e	•••
OCONEE							
High Shoals Health (706) 769-7738	and Rehabilitation 3450 New High Shoals Rd, Bishop,	,GA 30621					
Presbyterian Village (706) 739-769	e - Athens 1400 Live Oak Ln Bldg 100, Athens	s, GA 30606 0				C	

	ONSITE SERVICES D DIALYSIS TRACHS VENTS BARIATRIC	locked UNITS
PAULDING		
Wellstar Paulding N (770) 445-4411	l ursing Center 600 West Memorial Drive, Dallas, GA 30132	80
PICKENS		
Grandview Health ((706) 692-6323	Care Center 618 Gennett Drive, Jasper, GA 30143	•
Wildwood Health a (706) 692-6014	nd Rehab 184 Pin Hook Road, Talking Rock, GA 30175	
Pruitthealth - Jasp (706) 253-2441	er 1350 East Church Street, Jasper, GA 30143	
ROCKDALE		
Rockdale Healthcar (770) 483-4480	re Center 1510 Reniassance Drive, Conyers, GA 30012	0
Westbury Center of (770) 483-3902	Conyers for Nursing and Healing 1420 Milstead Road, Conyers, GA 30012	0
SPALDING		
Brightmoor Nursin (770) 228-8599	g Center, LLC 3235 Newnan Road, Griffin, GA 30223	
Pruitthealth - Griffi (770) 228-4517	n 619 Northside Drive, Griffin, GA 30223	
Spalding Post Acute (770) 227-8636	415 Airport Road, Griffin, GA 30224	
WALTON		
Park Place Nursing (770) 267-8677	FacilityD1865 Bold Springs Road, Monroe, GA 30655	6
Social Circle Nsg & (770) 464-2019	Rehab Ctr 671 North Cherokee Road, Social Circle, GA 30025	
WHITE		
Friendship Health a (706) 865-3131	n d Rehab 161 Friendship Road,Cleveland, GA 30528	
Gateway Health an (706) 865-5686	d Rehab 3201 Westmoreland Road, Cleveland, GA 30528	

Evaluating an Assisted Living Community

Assisted living communities provide supportive services in a home-like environment in order to meet the needs of residents who are unable to perform, or who need help in performing certain activities of daily living. These communities may provide assistance with meal preparation, household chores, dressing or bathing and managing medications. Most communities provide three meals a day in a dining room. Assisted living communities usually have a wellness coordinator on staff to coordinate resident care and supervise the CNAs, and other caregivers. Caregivers are available 24/7 onsite for the residents.



In order to be accepted into an assisted living community, a staff member from the community will assess the potential resident to make sure they meet the state requirements for assisted living communities. To be a candidate for assisted living, a person must not require continuous medical treatment and must be able to self-preserve in an emergency (or require limited assistance to exit the building in an emergency). The potential resident is required to have a physician statement and a recent negative TB test.



Unlike skilled nursing facilities, which are required to provide 24-hour supervision by a registered or licensed nurse, assisted living communities do not usually have skilled healthcare professionals (e.g., a registered or licensed nurse) on staff 24/7. If skilled nursing is needed on an intermittent basis, a doctor can write an order for home health care so that a registered nurse, physical therapist, etc., can provide those services to the resident at the assisted living community.



Some communities specialize in serving residents with memory loss, and other communities have designated memory care units. These secure, specialized communities offer services and structure specially designed to accommodate those with various dementias. The staff has had specialized training in caring for those with dementia and related diseases. This level of care offers 24-hour supervision, secure units (locked), meals, activities, and care services specific to each resident.



When you visit several assisted living communities, use the checklist found at www.hureyeclaw.com/ resources for each community you visit. You will notice that they vary considerably in appearance as well as cost. Some resemble luxury hotels and others appear to be more like private homes. Either environment can deliver exceptional care. Focus on what's important to the resident and you.



Georgia adopted a new level of licensure in 2011 called "Assisted Living Community." Some assisted living communities may technically still have the old license, which is the Personal Care Home license. A home or small community that has between two and 24 beds must be a Personal Care Home. A home or community with over 24 beds can be a Personal Care Home or an Assisted Living Community. Ask the staff at the home you are visiting if it is a Personal Care Home or an Assisted Living Community. Both types offer personal care services, but an Assisted Living Community must employ Certified Medication Aides (CMAs) that can administer medications. Furthermore, an Assisted Living Community can retain residents who lose the ability to walk or to self-preserve in emergencies.



The next step is to identify the facilities in your area that meet the criteria you established earlier. This guide provides a list of communities in the Metro Atlanta area.

Download the Assisted Living Community Evaluation form at www.hurleyeclaw.com/resources. Use a separate form for each place you visit. Your ratings will help you compare communities and choose the best one for your situation. But don't rely simply on the numbers — ask to speak to family members of other residents.



Beyond the guide, listings of facilities in the Metropolitan area can be obtained from:

Georgia Senior Living Association 678-407-2060 www.gasla.org Georgia Health Care Association 678-289-6555 www.ghca.info Georgia Department of Community Health — "Find a Facility" https://forms.dch.georgia.gov/HFRD/

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

		ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Co	are Home
BARROW			
Gateway Gardens Assisted Living & Memory Care (678) 963-5828 138 Gateway Lane, Bethlehem, GA 30620	ALC	Mulberry Grove Senior Living (770) 725-6978 343 Price Street, Statham, GA 30666	РСН
The Landing of Winder (678) 219-3950 901 Haymon Morris Road, Winder, GA 30680	ALC	Oak Pointe Senior Living, LLC (678) 534-7542 208 Memory Lane, Winder, GA 30680	ALC
Magnolia Estates of Winder (770) 867-4256 624 Gainesville Highway, Winder, GA 30680	РСН		
BARTOW			
Brookside Cartersville (770) 382-5683 60 Massell Drive SE, Cartersville, GA 30121	PCH	Highlands Senior Living (770) 382-8989 16 Roving Road, Cartersville, GA 30121	РСН
Burnt Hickory Residences (770) 386-4202 89 Burnt Hickory Road, Cartersville, GA 30120	PCH	Highlands Senior Living South (770) 386-8147 241 Nelson Street, Cartersville, GA 30120	РСН
Fite Living Center (770) 382-2002 5 Fite Street, Cartersville, GA 30120	PCH	Manor Lake Cartersville (470) 863-3833 50 Conference Center Dr SE, Cartersville, GA 30121	ALC
The Fountains In Cartersville, (770) 462-2062 925 Douthit Ferry Road, Cartersville, GA 30120	ALC	Tiger Lily Estates Assisted Living & Memory Care (706) 775-8444 235 Gilreath Road, Cartersville, GA 30121	ALC
BIBB			
Alexander IV Senior Living (478) 561-2500 3769 Ridge Avenue, Macon, GA 31204	ALC	John-Wesley Villas (478) 477-4424 5471 Thomaston Road, Macon, GA 31220	ALC
Antebellum Arlington Place (478) 745-7971 684 Arlington Place, Macon, GA 31201	РСН	Madison Heights at The Prado (478) 471-9433 250 Water Tower Court,Macon, GA 31210	ALC
Carlyle Place Retirement Community (478) 405-4500 5300 Zebulon Road, Macon, GA 31210	PCH	Magnolia Manor of Macon (478) 741-6684 194 Pierce Avenue, Macon, GA 31204	ALC
The Cottages on Wesleyan (478) 405-8280 1633 Wesleyan Dr, Macon, GA 31210	ALC	The Oaks - Peake (478) 474-0025 400 Foster Road, Macon, GA 31210	PCH

Metro-Atlanta Nursing Home and Assisted Living Guide - 7th Edition. ©2024 all rights reserved.

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

Oaks at Lake Wildwood (478) 477-6911 6191 Peake Road, Macon, GA 31220	ALC	St Francis Assisted Living Community (478) 254-7900 4901 Harrison Road, Macon, GA 31206	ALC
Plantation Suites (478) 405-6325 6000 Plantation Way, Macon, GA 31210	РСН	Watercrest Macon Assisted Living and Memory Care (478) 250-9154 111 Providence Blvd, Macon, GA 31210	ALC

PCH

BUTTS

BIBB (continued)

Autumn Village Assisted Living Facility	
(770) 504-0083	
753 Covington Street, Jackson, GA 30233	

CARROLL

Ashbrook Village Senior Living (770) 456-4477	ALC	Laurel Glen at Carrollton (770) 830-8857	ALC
75 Herrell Road, Villa Rica, GA 30180		150 Cottage Lane, Carrollton, GA 30117	
Autumn Square (770) 834-1737	РСН	Laurel Glen at Carrollton Personal Care Home (770) 830-8857	PCH
2455 Oak Grove Church Road, Carrollton, GA 30117		150 Cottage Lane, Carrollton, GA 30117	
The Birches at Villa Rica (678) 840-1800	ALC	The Oaks - Carrollton Assisted Living (770) 834-2242	ALC
201 Permian Way, Villa Rica, GA 30180		921 Old Newnan Road, Carrollton, GA 30116	
Brookdale Carrollton	ALC	The Stewart House	РСН
(770) 214-1988 530 Northside Drive, Carrollton, GA 30117		(770) 828-0303 102 South Street, Carrollton, GA 30117	
Front Porch of Bowdon	РСН		

Front Porch of Bowdon (770) 258-8600 501 Mitchell Avenue, Bowdon, GA 30108

CHEROKEE

The Arbor at Bridgemill (770) 293-7910 700 Freedom Blvd, Canton, GA 30114	ALC	Brickmont of Woodstock (404) 702-7275 13291 Highway 92, Woodstock, GA 30188	ALC
Benton House of Woodstock (678) 494-4500 3385 Trickum Road, Woodstock, GA 30188	ALC	Camellia Place (770) 296-1513 294 Rope Mill Road, Woodstock, GA 30188	ALC

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

CHEROKEE (continued)		Rec. Assisted Living Community - P Ch. 1 ersonal Car	enome
Cameron Hall of Canton	ALC	Merrill Gardens at Woodstock	ALC
(770) 720-0290		(678) 718-8700	
240 Marietta Highway, Canton, GA 30114		12730 Highway 92 East, Woodstock, GA 30188	
Cedarhurst of Canton	ALC	Oaks at Towne Lake	ALC
(770) 224-8000		(770) 592-2195	
3100 Hidden Valley Dr, Canton, GA 30114		4580 Towne Lake Parkway, Woodstock, GA 30189	
Holbrook of Woodstock	ALC	The Phoenix at Union Hill	ALC
(678) 566-0034		(470) 280-7594	
13682 Highway 92, Woodstock, GA 30188		9651 Union Hill Rd, Canton, GA 30115	
The Landings of Canton Hills	ALC	Reserve at Towne Lake, LLC	ALC
(770) 721-2812		(770) 928-2440	
1100 Reinhardt College Parkway, Canton, GA 30114		1962 Eagle Drive, Woodstock, GA 30189	
Legacy Ridge at Neese Rd	PCH	Retreat at Canton	ALC
(770) 232-6415		(678) 880-9856	
756 Neese Road, Woodstock, GA 30188		3333 East Cherokee Drive, Canton, GA 30115	
Bellevue Village of Woodstock	ALC	Sunabella of Towne Lake LLC	ALC
(770) 232-6418		1835 Eagle Drive, Woodstock, GA 30189	
1000 Professional Way, Woodstock, GA 30188			
		Wickshire Canton	PCH
Manor Lake Bridgemill	ALC	(770) 592-4242	
(678) 990-5055		125 Riverside Terrace, Canton, GA 30114,7707209669	
131 Holly Street, Canton, GA 30114			

CLARKE

Arbor Terrace of Athens (706) 353-0400 170 Marilyn Farmer Way, Athens, GA 30606	ALC	Oaks at Cedar Shoals (706) 227-0919 1291 Cedar Shoals Drive, Athens, GA 30605	PCH
Avery Village (706) 510-1257 124 Avery Street, Winterville, GA 30683	ALC	Orchard at Athens (706) 521-8888 2750 Atlanta Hwy, Athens, GA 30606	ALC
Haven Memory Care of Athens, LLC (706)549-9800 705 Whitehead Road, Athens, GA 30606	РСН	Wesley Woods of Athens- Lanier Gardens 801 Riverhill Drive, Athens, GA 30606,7063697100	РСН
Manor Lake Athens (762) 499-6364	ALC		

933 Us Highway 29, Athens, GA 30601

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

CLAYTON

Carriage Crossing (770) 210-6433	ALC	Governor's Glen Mem Care & Assisted Living Com (312) 520-6863	im ALC
7493 Mt Zion Blvd, Jonesboro, GA 30236		5000 Governor's Drive, Forest Park, GA 30297	
The Gardens of Lake Spivey	РСН	Jonesboro Assisted Living Center	ALC
(770) 477-7207 8080 Summit Business Parkway, Jonesboro, GA 3023	6	(770) 603-5559 2620 Highway 138, Jonesboro, GA 30236	
	.		
Goldencrest Assisted Living at Morrow	ALC	Summer's Landing Bayberry Trace	PCH
(770) 961-2200 2160 Lake Harbin Rd, Morrow, GA 30260		(770) 471-5552 315 Arrowhead Blvd, Jonesboro, GA 30236	
,		,,,	
СОВВ			
Arbor Terrace of Burnt Hickory	ALC	Cadence Marietta	ALC
(770) 691-0050		(678) 366-7700	
920 Burnt Hickory Road, Marietta, GA 30064		1345 Milford Church Road, Marietta, GA 30008	
Arbor Terrace of East Cobb	ALC	The Cambridge	ALC
(770) 977-4420		(678) 903-0339	
886 Johnson Ferry Road, Marietta, GA 30068		4838 South Cobb Drive SE, Smyrna, GA 30080	
Atherton Place	РСН	Canterfield of Kennesaw	ALC
(770) 421-7300 111 Tower Road, Marietta, GA 30060		(470) 308-5260 4381 Bells Ferry, Kennesaw, GA 30144	
III lower Road, Marietta, GA 30000		-soi beas reny, rennesaw, or soith	
Azalea Gardens at Mableton LLC	PCH	Celebration Village Acworth	ALC
(770) 435-0750 3829 Floyd Road, Austell, GA 30106		(678) 813-5309 4460 Celebration Boulevard, Acworth, GA 30101	
Azalea Manor Personal Care Home	РСН	Charter Senior Living of Vinings	ALC
(770) 428-0331 557 East Waterman Street, Marietta, GA 30060		(770) 679-8329 2401 Cumberland Pkwy SE, Atlanta, GA 30339	
Bethel Gardens	PCH	Daybreak Village Senior Living Community	PCH
(770) 943-3620 3805 Jackson Way Ext, Powder Springs, GA 30127		(770) 218-6155 3056 Cherokee Street, Kennesaw, GA 30144	
Brickmont Acworth Spe, LLC	ALC	Delmar Gardens of Smyrna	ALC
(770) 886-4074 3114 Cobb Parkway, Acworth, GA 30101		(770) 432-4444 404 King Springs Village Pkwy, Smyrna, GA 30082	
JIIT CODD Falkway, ACWOILL, GA SULUL		Tot Ming Springs village r Kwy, Siriyina, OA SUU02	
Brickmont of West Cobb Spe, LLC"	ALC	Dogwood Forest of Acworth	ALC
(404) 702-7275 2782 Dallas Highway, Mariotta, GA 20064		(678) 831-4999 4461 South Main Street, Acwarth, GA 20101	
2782 Dallas Highway, Marietta, GA 30064		4461 South Main Street, Acworth, GA 30101	

COBB (continued)

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

Femi Care Marietta Living Center	РСН	Parc at Piedmont	PCH
(770) 726-9630		(770) 565-8828	
447 Atlanta Street SE, Marietta, GA 30060		999 Hood Road, Marietta, GA 30068	
Gaines Park Senior Living	РСН	Peachtree Creek Assisted Living Community	ALC
(770) 424-1414		(770) 803-0100	
1740 Old 41 Hwy, Kennesaw, GA 30152		4375 Beech Haven Trail SE, Atlanta, GA 30339	
The Georgian Lakeside	ALC		
(678) 367-4744		Phoenix at Johnson Ferry	ALC
1070 Hardscrabble Road, Roswell, GA 30075		(770) 859-0570	
		9 Sherwood Lane, Marietta, GA 30067	
Greenwood Place	ALC		
(770) 422-7778		Presbyterian Village	PCH
1160 Whitlock Dr, Marietta, GA 30064		(770) 819-17000	
		2000 East-West Connector, Austell, GA 30106	
Hearthstone at Presbyterian Village	РСН		
(770) 819-7000		Silver Comet Village	ALC
2000 East-West Connector, Austell, GA 30106		(770) 222-2775	
		4900 Richard D Sailors Pkwy, Powder Springs, GA 30	0127
The Heritage of Marietta, The"	ALC		
(469) 619-5372		Smyrna Village	PCH
1790 Powder Springs Road, Marietta, GA 30064		(770) 319-1000	
		1418 Spring Street SE, Smyrna, GA 30080	
Kennesaw Place	РСН		
(770) 514-9966		Tne Solana East Cobb	ALC
2800 Jiles Road, Kennesaw, GA 30144		(770) 999-9002	
		1032 Johnson Ferry Road, Marietta, GA 30068	
Legacy Ridge at Brookstone	ALC	Stauling Estates of Most Cale	
(770) 423-0080		Sterling Estates of West Cobb	ALC
5235 Stilesboro Road, Kennesaw, GA 30152		(678) 467-7643 2165 Dollas History Marietta, CA 20064	
Logogy Didgo at Mariatta	ALC	3165 Dallas Highway, Marietta, GA 30064	
Legacy Ridge at Marietta (770) 971-0307	ALC	Sterling Estates Senior Living Community	ALC
840 Lecroy Drive, Marietta, GA 30068		(678) 946-14454	ALC
or Lectory Drive, Marietta, OA 50000		4220 Lower Roswell Road, Marietta, GA 30068	
Legacy Ridge at Sandy Plains	ALC	4220 Lower Roswell Road, Marietta, GA 50000	
(770) 973-7303	ALC	Sunrise of East Cobb	ALC
3039 Sandy Plains Road, Marietta, GA 30066		(770) 509-0919	7120
soos sundy rians road, marietta, shooos		1551 Johnson Ferry Road NE, Marietta, GA 30062	
Northstar Square	РСН		
678) 574-6941		Winnwood Retirement Community	ALC
3250 Quick Water Landing NW, Kennesaw, GA 30144 ((770) 428-6200	
		100 Whitlock Avenue, Marietta, GA 30064	
Oaks at West Cobb	ALC		
(470) 531-5940		Woodland Ridge Senior Living	ALC
3292 Ernest Barrett Parkway, Marietta, GA 30064		4 (770) 431-7055	-
		005 South Cobb Drive, Smyrna, GA 30080	
		003 30001 CODD DHVE, SHIYINA, GA 30000	

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

COLQUITT			
Legacy Village at Park Regency (229) 890-3342 3000 Veterans Parkway South, Moultrie, GA 31788	ALC	Magnolia Manor South (229) 985-0265 3011 Veterans Parkway, Moultrie, GA 31788	AL
COWETA			
Benton House of Newnan (770) 253-8444 25 Newnan Lakes Boulevard, Newnan, GA 30263	ALC	Magnolia Senior Living at Sharpsburg LLC (770) 683-4902 3700 East Highway 34, Sharpsburg, GA 30277	AL
Brookdale Newnan (770) 252-9007 355 Millard Farmer Industrial Boulevard, Newnan, GA 3	ALC 30263	Monarch House (678) 552-9867 299 Bullsboro Drive Suite 100, Newnan, GA 30263	AL
The Claiborne at Newnan Lakes (470) 686-6080 461 Newnan Lakes Boulevard, Newnan, GA 30263	ALC	The Plaza (770) 683-6855 110 Edgeworth Road, Newnan, GA 30263	ALG
Insignia of Newnan (770) 251-6639 27 Belt Road, Newnan, GA 30263	ALC	Westhill Newnan Crossing (770) 637-2207 285 Summerlin Blvd, Newnan, GA 30265	ALO
DAWSON			
Magnolia Senior Living at Dawsonville (678) 549-2640 786 North Lumpkin Campground Rd, Dawsonville, GA Manor Lake Dawsonville	ALC 30534 ALC	North Georgia Assisted Living & Memory Care (706) 344-1402 181 Memory Lane, Dawsonville, GA 30534	ALC
(706) 216-1333 3769 Kallie Circle, Dawsonville, GA 30534			
DEKALB			
Arbor Terrace Decatur (404) 292-5910 425 Winn Way, Decatur, GA 30030	ALC	Brighton Gardens of Dunwoody (770) 730-9333 1240 Ashford Center Parkway, Dunwoody, GA 30338	ALC
Benton House of Decatur (404) 386-3773 2711 Lawrenceville Hwy, Decatur, GA 30033	ALC	Cobblestone Assisted Living at Park Springs (678) 684-3800 600 Springhouse Circle, Stone Mountain, GA 30087	ALC
Berman Commons Assisted Living and Memory Car (678) 222-7500 2026 Womack Road, Atlanta, GA 30338	e ALC	Coventry Place (404) 296-0962 2806 North Decatur Road, Decatur, GA 30033	PCH

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

DEKALB (continued)

Dunwoody Place Personal Care Home (404) 252-7974	РСН	Oaks at Tucker (770) 934-0034	ALC
1460 South Johnson Ferry Road, Atlanta, GA 30319		1300 Montreal Road, Tucker, GA 30084	
The Holbrook of Decatur	ALC	Orchard at Brookhaven	ALC
(404) 496-6794		(404) 775-0488	
1882 Clairmont Road, Decatur, GA 30033		1634 Afton Lane, Brookhaven, GA 30329	
King's Bridge Retirement Center	ALC	The Phoenix at Dunwoody	ALC
(404) 321-0263		(770) 350-2393	
3055 Briarcliff Road Ne, Atlanta, GA 30329		4484 N Shallowford Road, Dunwoody, GA 30338	
The Madeline of Decatur	ALC	The Phoenix at Tucker	ALC
(404) 299-6600		(770) 938-5600	
475 Irvin Court, Decatur, GA 30030		2060 Idlewood Road, Tucker, GA 30084	
Medlock Gardens Senior Living	PCH	Sunrise of Decatur	ALC
(404) 370-0460		(404) 377-6111	
460 Medlock Road, Decatur, GA 30030		920 Clairmont Avenue, Decatur, GA 30030	
The Montclair	PCH	Wesley Woods Towers Pch	PCH
(404) 633-8875		(404) 728-6600	
2100 Clairmont Lake, Decatur, GA 30033		1825 Clifton Road, NE, Atlanta, GA 30329	
Mountain View Pch	РСН	Yellow Brick House	РСН
(404) 508-7593		(770) 482-4044	
3675 Kensington Road, Decatur, GA 30032		6903 Main Street, Lithonia, GA 30058	
DOUGLAS			
Benton House of Douglasville	ALC	Harmony at Douglasville	ALC
(770) 942-9449		(770) 293-8230	
4999 Prestley Mill Road, Douglasville, GA 30135		4595 Timber Ridge Drive, Douglasville, GA 30135	
Brookdale Sweetwater Creek	PCH	Legacy Ridge at Sweetwater Creek	РСН
(770) 819-6777		(770) 232-6403	
1600 Lee Road, Lithia Springs, GA 30122		1600 Lee Road, Lithia Springs, GA 30122	
Harbor of Douglasville	ALC	Oaks at Douglasville	ALC
(770) 920-2273		(770) 947-0252	
8847 Hospital Drive, Douglasville, GA 30134		4605 Timber Ridge Drive, Douglasville, GA 30135	

FANNIN

Blue Ridge Assisted Living and Memory CareALC(706) 946-60001600 Balletown Road, Blue Ridge, GA 30513

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

FA	VEI	гΤ	F
ГА	IE		

Arbor Terrace Peachtree City (770) 632-5823	РСН	Legacy Ridge at Peachtree (770) 631-3461	ALC
201 Crosstown Drive, Peachtree City, GA 30269		1967 Highway 54 West, Peachtree City, GA 30269	
Azalea Estates of Fayetteville	ALC	Oaks of Fayetteville	PCH
(770) 461-0039 105 Autumn Glen Circle, Fayetteville, GA 30215		(770) 719-9010 1294 Highway 54 West, Fayetteville, GA 30214	
Heartis Fayetteville	ALC	Reserve at Peachtree City	РСН
(770) 461-2555 936 West Lanier Avenue, Fayetteville, GA 30214		(770) 631-0205 441 Prime Point, Peachtree City, GA 30269	
Hope Center Memory Care	ALC	Somerby Peachtree City	ALC
(678) 817-4672 355 Brandywine Boulevard, Fayetteville, GA 30214		(470) 278-2240 200 Rockaway Road, Peachtree City, GA 30269	
		200 Rockaway Road, Feachtree City, GA 30209	
FLOYD			
Brookdale Rome	ALC	Pathways Intentional Memory Care - Riverwood	ALC
(706) 234-1655 180 Woodrow Wilson Way, Rome, GA 30165		(706) 235-0807 511 West 10th Street, Rome, GA 30165	
	DCII	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	РСН
The Gardens of Rome (706) 802-0990	РСН	Renaissance Marquis Retirement Village (706) 295-0014	РСП
1168 Chulio Road SE, Rome, GA 30161		3126 Cedar Town Highway, Rome, GA 30161	
The Harbor at Renaissance Marquis	ALC	Riverwood Senior Living	PCH
(706) 295-0014 3126 Cedartown Hwy SW, Rome, GA 30161		(706) 235-0807 511 West 10th Street, Rome, GA 30165	
Magnolia Place Assisted Living and Memory Care	ALC	Seven Hills Square	ALC
(706) 728-3650 500 Eagle Lake Trail, Rome, GA 30165		(706) 232-5244 279 Technology Parkway, Rome, GA 30165	
soo Eugle Luke Huil, Kome, Skiso 105		215 reclinition gy rankway, nonic, 0750105	
FORSYTH			
Antebellum James Burgess Senior Living	ALC	Celebration Village Forsyth	ALC
(678) 807-7350 1520 James Burgess Road, Suwanee, GA 30024		(770) 744-0832 3000 Celebration Boulevard, Suwanee, GA 30024	
		Country Gardens Lanier Senior Living	РСН
Arbor Terrace South Forsyth (770) 999-9577	ALC	(770) 889-7889 255 Elm Street, Cumming, GA 30040	
3180 Karen White Dr, Suwanee, GA 30024			
Brickmont Johns Creek Spe, LLC	ALC	Cumming Manor Personal Care (770) 781-2300	PCH
(404) 702-7275		2775 Castleberry Road, Cumming, GA 30040	
2305 Peachtree Park, Cumming, GA 30041			

FORSYTH (continued)

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

PCH	Oaks at Shiloh Point	ALC
	7955 Majors Road, Cumming, GA 30041	
ALC	The Phoenix at James Creek (678) 685-8940	ALC
ALC		
	Towne Club Windermere Assisted Living	ALC
	(770) 844-7779	
	3950 Towne Club Parkway, Cumming, GA 30041	
ALC		
	The Villas at Canterfield	PCH
	(770) 888-4929	
	815 Atlanta Highway, Cumming, GA 30040	
ALC		
	ALC ALC ALC	 (678) 456-8363 7955 Majors Road, Cumming, GA 30041 ALC The Phoenix at James Creek (678) 685-8940 90 Ruth Lane, Cumming, GA 30041 ALC Towne Club Windermere Assisted Living (770) 844-7779 3950 Towne Club Parkway, Cumming, GA 30041 ALC The Villas at Canterfield (770) 888-4929 815 Atlanta Highway, Cumming, GA 30040

FULTON

Addington Place of Alpharetta (678) 319-3000 762 North Main Street, Alpharetta, GA 30009	ALC	Brickmont Roswell SPE, LLC (404) 702-7275 5455 Glenridge Drive, NE, Roswell, GA 30022	ALC
Addington Place of Johns Creek (770) 754-5446 5050 Kimball Bridge Road, Johns Creek, GA 30005	ALC	Brighton Gardens of Buckhead (404) 846-8335 3088 Lenox Road, Atlanta, GA 30324	ALC
Addington Place of Roswell (770) 993-8040 550 Barrington Drive, Roswell, GA 30075	РСН	Brookdale Chambrel Roswell (770) 594-4600 1000 Applewood Drive, Roswell, GA 30076	РСН
Arbor Terrace at Cascade (404) 691-0304 1001 Research Center Atlanta Drive, Atlanta, GA 30331	ALC	Brookdale Chambrel Roswell MC (678) 781-1631 2000 Applewood Drive, Roswell, GA 30076	ALC
Arbor Terrace at Crabapple (770) 649-1009 12200 Crabapple Road, Alpharetta, GA 30004	ALC	Buckhead Flats (404) 240-2848 2848 Lenox Road Ne, Atlanta, GA 30324	РСН
Atria North Point (770) 650-9577 100 Somerby Drive, Alpharetta, GA 30009	ALC	The Cohen Home (770) 475-8787 10485 Jones Bridge Road, Johns Creek, GA 30022	ALC
Belmont Village Buckhead (404) 252-6271 5455 Glenridge Drive, NE, Atlanta, GA 30342	РСН	Corso Atlanta (404) 891-9190 3200 Howell Mill Road, Atlanta, GA 30327	ALC

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

FULTON (continued)

Country Gardens Union City (770) 969-3130	РСН
7175 Lester Road, Union City, GA 30291	
The Crossings at Webb Bridge Road (770) 291-6263	ALC
3300 Webb Bridge Road, Alpharetta, GA 30005 The Haven at Hammond Glen	РСН
(404) 256-6300 335 Hammond Drive NE, Atlanta, GA 30328	
Heartis Buckhead	ALC
(678) 870-4908 2051 Peachtree St NE, Atlanta, GA 30309	
Historic Roswell Place Assisted Living & Memory	ALC
(770) 645-1900 75 Magnolia St, Roswell, GA 30075	
Hollander Senior Living and Memory Care (404) 477-3800	PCH
5399 Northland Drive, NE, Atlanta, GA 30342	
Inspired Living at Alpharetta (470) 509-5995	ALC
11450 Morris Road, Alpharetta, GA 30005	
Legacy Ridge at Alpharetta (678) 987-8400	ALC
4125 North Point Pkwy, Alpharetta, GA 30022	
Legacy Ridge at Buckhead (404) 531-0145	ALC
4804 Roswell Road, Atlanta, GA 30342	
Lenbrook Assisted Living (404) 233-3000	ALC
3747 Peachtree Road NE, Atlanta, GA 30319	
Magnolia Place of Roswell Pch & Memory Care (770) 643-9433	PCH
655 Mansell Road, Roswell, GA 30076	
The Mann House Sandy Springs 5413 Northland Drive, Atlanta, GA 30342,4042509300	ALC
Mansions at Alpharetta Senior Living & Memory (470) 359-5200	ALC
3675 Old Milton Parkway, Alpharetta, GA 30005	

Mansions at Sandy Springs Al and Memory Care	ALC
(678) 684-6990 7300 Spalding Drive, Peachtree Corners, GA 30092	
The Memory Center Atlanta	ALC
(770) 476-3678	ALC
12050 Findley Road, Johns Creek, GA 30097	
The Phoenix at Milton	ALC
(470) 238-6400 13943 Highway 9 North, Milton, GA 30004	
The Phoenix at Roswell	ALC
(678) 214-2900	
11725 Pointe Place, Roswell, GA 30076	
The Piedmont at Buckhead (404) 442-2700	ALC
650 Phipps Blvd, Atlanta, GA 30326	
Pruittplace - Sandy Springs	ALC
(770) 279-6200	
7400 Peachtree Dunwoody Road NE, Atlanta, GA 30328	
Renaissance On Peachtree (404) 237-2323	ALC
3755 Peachtree Road NE, Atlanta, GA 30319	
Sandy Springs Personal Care Center	PCH
(404) 255-3534 300 Johnson Ferry Road, NE, Atlanta, GA 30328	
Somerby Sandy Springs	ALC
(770) 695-0230	
25 Glenlake Parkway, Sandy Springs, GA 30328	
Sparks Inn Retirement Center	ALC
(770) 964-3301 2200 Lester Deed, Union City, CA 20201	
7290 Lester Road, Union City, GA 30291	
St Ives Assisted Living (770) 476-1777	ALC
5835 Medlock Bridge Parkway, Alpharetta, GA 30022	
Summerset	ALC
(404) 691-4545	
3711 Benjamin E Mays Drive SW, Atlanta, GA 30331	

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

FULTON (continued)

Sunrise at Huntcliff Summit	ALC	The Terraces at Peachtree Hills Place Al	ALC
(678) 461-1000		(678) 619-5600	/
8480 Roswell Road, Atlanta, GA 30350		229 Peachtree Hills Avenue, Atlanta, GA 30305	
Sunrise of Buckhead	ALC	Vernon Springs Senior Living, Inc	PCH
(404) 261-8700		(404) 843-8857	
1000 Lenox Park Boulevard, NE, Atlanta, GA 30319		690 Mount Vernon Hwy NE, Atlanta, GA 30328 Villa Palazzo Assisted Living and Memory Care	ALC
Sunrise of Ivey Ridge	ALC	(770) 850-8200	//LC
(770) 475-6622		1262 Hightower Trail, Atlanta, GA 30350	
2950 Old Alabama Road, Alpharetta, GA 30022			
Sunrise of Johns Creek	ALC	Village Park Milton	ALC
(770) 814-0505		(470) 509-4557	
11405 Medlock Bridge Road, Johns Creek, GA 30097		555 Willis Road, Alpharetta, GA 30009	
Tapestry House Assisted Living	ALC	Village Park of Alpharetta	ALC
(770) 649-0808		12300 Morris Road, Alpharetta, GA 30005,6787403499	
2725 Holcomb Bridge Road, Alpharetta, GA 30022			
		Vitality Living Milton	ALC
Tapestry House Memory Care (770) 992-0505	ALC	2925 Webb Road, Milton, GA 30004,6787659882	
9212 Nesbit Ferry Road, Alpharetta, GA 30022		Wellington Court Assisted Living	ALC
		(770) 645-2340	/
Terrabella Roswell	ALC	11350 Woodstock Road, Roswell, GA 30075	
(770) 650-0555		,,	
400 Marietta Highway, Roswell, GA 30075			
GILMER			
Manor Lake Ellijay	ALC	Oaks at Ellijay	РСН
(706) 636-9494		(706) 515-4100	
85 Highland Ridge Road, Ellijay, GA 30540		114 Penland Street, Ellijay, GA 30540	
GWINNETT			
Arbor Terrace at Hamilton Mill	ALC	Benton House of Grayson	ALC
(770) 999-0421		(770) 682-7777	
3581 Braselton Highway, Dacula, GA 30019		2270 Loganville Highway, Grayson, GA 30017	
Ashton Manor at Sugarloaf LLC	ALC	Benton House of Sugar Hill	ALC
(770) 963-4837		(770) 904-0099	
1155 Lawrenceville Highway, Lawrenceville, GA 30046		6009 Suwanee Dam Road, Sugar Hill, GA 30518	
Atria Park of Tucker	PCH	The Bridge at Lawrenceville	PCH
(770) 925-9170		(678) 377-8191	
5844 Lawrenceville Highway, Tucker, GA 30084		220 Collins Industrial Way, Lawrenceville, GA 30045	

Metro-Atlanta Nursing Home and Assisted Living Guide - 7th Edition. ©2024 all rights reserved.

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

GWINNETT (continued)

Brookdale Lawrenceville	ALC	Magnolia Senior Living	PCH
(770) 963-9934		(770) 338-0493	
1000 River Centre Place, Lawrenceville, GA 30043		89 Ozora Road, Loganville, GA 30052	
Brookside Stone Mountain, LLC	PCH	Magnolia Senior Living at Sugar Hill	РСН
(770) 469-8800		(770) 940-6116	
1745 Parke Plaza Circle, Stone Mountain, GA 30087		422 Riverside Road, Sugar Hill, GA 30518	
Charter Senior Living of Buford	PCH	Manor Lake Hamilton Mill	ALC
(678) 341-2338		(678) 904-1078	
4450 Old Hamilton Road, Buford, GA 30518		2911 Hamilton Mill Road, Buford, GA 30519	
Country Gardens Duluth	PCH	Mansions at Gwinnett Park Assisted Living and Mc	ALC
(678) 341-1347		(470) 394-1800	
3450 Duluth Park Lane, Duluth, GA 30096		2450 Buford Drive, Lawrenceville, GA 30043	
Delmar Gardens of Gwinnett	ALC	Oaks at Snellville	PCH
(770) 923-3100		(770) 982-8012	
3100 Club Drive, Lawrenceville, GA 30044		2078 Scenic Highway North, Snellville, GA 30078	
Discovery Village at Sugarloaf	ALC	Oaks at Suwanee Creek	ALC
(770) 232-3008		(470) 235-5300	
1220 Satellite Boulevard, Suwanee, GA 30024		3681 Burnette Road, Suwanee, GA 30024	
Dogwood Forest of Grayson	ALC	Parc at Duluth	PCH
(678) 496-2319		(770) 622-6880	
1754 Grayson Highway, Grayson, GA 30017		3315 Peachtree Industrial Blvd, Duluth, GA 30096	
Haven Memory Care of Snellville, LLC	РСН	Peachtree Villa at Suwanee	ALC
(770) 978-9595		(678) 990-4580	
2106 Mcgee Road, Snellville, GA 30078		1475 Satellite Boulevard, Suwanee, GA 30024	
Heartis Suwanee	ALC	Pebblebrook Memory Care at Park Springs	ALC
(770) 614-6601		(678) 684-3085	
4055 Suwanee Dam Road, Suwanee, GA 30024		5610 New Bermuda Road, Stone Mountain, GA 30087	
Holbrook Assisted and Memory Living - Sugar Hill	ALC	The Retreat at Buford	ALC
(404) 480-7802		(770) 573-9096	
5135 West Broad Street, Sugar Hill, GA 30518		3177 Gravel Springs Road, Buford, GA 30519	
Hope Center Memory Care Dacula	ALC	Senior Living Suites at Parkside	PCH
(770) 963-4673		(770) 972-2040	
1200 Winder Hwy, Dacula, GA 30019		3000 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, GA 30078	
The Landings at Norcross	ALC	The Sheridan at Eastside	ALC
(770) 368-0292		(678) 346-8808	
680 Holcomb Bridge Road, Norcross, GA 30071		1900 Tree Lane, Snellville, GA 30078	

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

GWINNETT (continued)

Sunrise at Webb Gin (770) 736-8293 1375 Webb Gin House Road, Lawrenceville, GA 30045	ALC	Village Park at Spalding (770) 416-0502 5701 Spalding Drive, Peachtree Corners, GA 30092	ALC
Sunrise of Five Forks 3997 Five Forks Trickum Road, Lilburn, GA 30047,7703817733	ALC	Wickshire South Lee Buford (770) 271-0277 4355 South Lee Street, Buford, GA 30518	РСН
HALL			
Ashton Senior Living, Gainesville (770) 287-0714 1012 Enota Avenue, Gainesville, GA 30501	ALC	Manor Lake Gainesville (678) 940-1101 2900 McEver Road, Gainesville, GA 30504	ALC
Cedarhurst of Oakwood (770) 297-6900 4251 Hudson Drive, Oakwood, GA 30566	ALC	Oak Bridge Terrace at Lanier Village Estates (678) 450-3015 3950 Village View Drive, Gainesville, GA 30506	ALC
Gardens of Gainesville (770) 531-7800 3315 Thompson Bridge Road, Gainesville, GA 30503	ALC	Oaks at Braselton (770) 965-7003 5373 Thompson Mill Road, Hoschton, GA 30548	ALC
Hamilton Place Personal Living, LLC (470) 691-0161 2215 Old Hamilton Pl, Gainesville, GA 30507	PCH	The Phoenix at Braselton (678) 940-3525 1929 Friendship Road, Hoschton, GA 30548	ALC
Lakes at Gainesville Assisted Living (770) 531-6100 2435 Limestone Parkway, Gainesville, GA 30501	ALC	The Phoenix at Lake Lanier (678) 971-1900 2601 Thompson Bridge Road, Gainesville, GA 30501	ALC
The Landings of Gainesville (678) 971-1449 2030 Windward Lane, Gainesville, GA 30501	PCH		
HARALSON			
Thomas Kelly Senior Living Community (770) 646-7777 4083 Business Hwy 27, Buchanan, GA 30113	ALC		
HENRY			
Benton Village of Stockbridge (770) 389-3889 201 Evergreen Terrace, Stockbridge, GA 30281	ALC	The Gardenias (770) 946-0325 75 Dutchtown Road, Hampton, GA 30228	РСН

Metro-Atlanta Nursing Home and Assisted Living Guide - 7th Edition. ©2024 all rights reserved.

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

HENRY (continued)			
Goldencrest at Eagle's Landing (770) 389-3118 425 Country Club Drive, Stockbridge, GA 30281	ALC	Oaks at Eagles Landing (678) 209-2033 2700 Patrick Henry Parkway, Stockbridge, GA 30281	ALC
Mount Carmel Assisted Living (770) 946-3376 3084 Mt Carmel Road, Hampton, GA 30228	ALC		
MUSCOGEE			
Brookdale Columbus (706) 576-4811 3607 Weems Road, Columbus, GA 31909	РСН	Oaks at Grove Park (706) 507-4460 1479 Grove Park Drive, Columbus, GA 31904	ALC
Brookside Glen (706) 322-3040 400 Bradley Park Dr, Columbus, GA 31904	ALC	Oaks at Maple Ridge (706) 561-0271 4500 South Stadium Drive, Columbus, GA 31909	ALC
Covenant Woods Retirement Community (706) 561-1401 5424 Woodruff Farm Road, Columbus, GA 31907	РСН	Savannah Grand of Columbus (706) 653-8100 8301 Franciscan Woods Drive, Columbus, GA 31909	ALC
The Gardens at Calvary (706) 653-2000 7595 Moon Road, Columbus, GA 31909	ALC	Spring Harbor at Green Island,Personal Care Hom (706) 576-6000 100 Spring Harbor Drive, Columbus, GA 31904	e
The Landings of Columbus (706) 653-9191 6830 River Road, Columbus, GA 31904	РСН	Stewart Community Home (706) 327-2707 1125 15th Street, Columbus, GA 31901	РСН
Legacy Reserve at Old Town (762) 524-7550 8601 Queen Bee Drive, Columbus, GA 31909	ALC	Thrive at Green Island (706) 383-0590 6896 River Road,Columbus, GA 31904	ALC
Magnolia Manor of Columbus Assisted Living (706) 327-5032 2040 Warm Springs Road, Columbus, GA 31904	ALC		
NEWTON			
Benton House of Covington (770) 788-6660 7155 Dearing Road, Covington, GA 30014	ALC	Oaks at Ashton Hills (770) 886-4600 10050 Eagle Drive, Covington, GA 30014	ALC
Merryvale Assisted Living (770) 786-4688 11980 Highway 142 North, Oxford, GA 30054	ALC		

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

OCONEE

Magnolia Estates of Oconee (706) 543-5595 1641 Virgil Langford Road, Watkinsville, GA 30677 Presbyterian Village - Athens (706) 739-7690 1400 Live Oak Lane, Building 100, Athens, GA 30606	PCH ALC	St Gabriel of Athens (706) 521-0550 2040 Resurgence Drive, Watkinsville, GA 30677 St Marys Highland Hills Village (706) 353-8840 1660 Jennings Mill Road, Watkinsville, GA 30677	ALC ALC
PAULDING			
Kimberly PCH (770) 505-7600 700 West Memorial Dr, Dallas, GA 30132 The Lodge at Aspen Village ,Personal Care Home (770) 635-1780 135 Hillside Trace, Dallas, GA 30157 Manor Lake Hiram (678) 973-1906 68 Breezy Valley Conn, Hiram, GA 30141	PCH	Oaks at Acworth (770) 715-4460 2351 Cedarcrest Road, Acworth, GA 30101 The Pearl at Dallas (404) 713-1936 3366 Atlanta Highway, Dallas, GA 30132	ALC
PICKENS			
The Lodge at Stephens Lake (706) 307-4330 200 Mountain Boulevard South, Jasper, GA 30143 The Retreat at Jasper (706) 253-7400 190 Sammy Mcghee Blvd, Jasper, GA 30143	ALC	Rock Creek Manor,Personal Care Home (678) 454-2600 50 Cagle Mill Road, South", Jasper, GA 30143	
ROCKDALE			
Manchester Court Assisted Living & Memory Care (470) 207-7250 1358 Manchester Drive, Conyers, GA 30012 Oaks at Conyers (770) 922-1654 1352 Wellbrook Circle NE, Conyers, GA 30012	ALC	The Retreat at Conyers (770) 761-4888 1504 Renaissance Drive, Conyers, GA 30012	РСН

ALC: Assisted Living Community PCH: Personal Care Home

SPALDING			
Brightmoor Senior Living (770) 227-9950 3223 Newnan Road, Griffin, GA 30223	РСН	The Woods Senior Living Communit (770) 412-6005 1401 Macon Road, Griffin, GA 30224	РСН
The Courtyard at Renaissance (770) 233-9525 419 Airport Road, Griffin, GA 30224	РСН		
WALTON			
The Gardens of Social Circle (770) 464-4211 621 North Cherokee Road, Social Circle, GA 30025 Great Oaks (770) 267 7002	PCH	The Retreat at Loganville (770) 466-2273 580 Tommy Lee Fuller Drive, Loganville, GA 30052	РСН
(770) 267-7902 920 Hwy 138 Nw, Monroe, GA 30655			



Seeking Legal Help

Navigating the complex process of growing older often requires specialized expertise. Certified Elder Law Attorneys support aging persons and their family members with legal issues like Medicaid planning, asset protection, wills, trusts, powers of attorney, property disposition and guardianship/conservatorship. Certified Elder Law Attorneys have demonstrated expertise in elder law and special needs, have passed a rigorous examination, maintained continuing education and involvement standards, and have been recognized by their peers and colleagues.

Hurley Elder Care Law

Miles P. Hurley, JD, CELA Danielle C. Humphrey, JD, CELA Jennifer Ghorley, JD

(404) 843-0121

This publication is designed to provide accurate and authoritative information in regard to the subject matter covered. It is published with the understanding that the publisher is not engaged in rendering legal, accounting or other professional service. If legal advice or other expert assistance is required, the services of a competent professional person should be sought.

From a Declaration of Principles jointly adopted by a Committee of the American Bar Association and a Committee of Publishers.



A Family Helping Families

We are a dedicated team of professionals helping seniors and their loved ones since 2006

Aging is inevitable

S tatistics show you or a close family member will need long term care. Whether you are proactively planning for your own or your loved one's future, or are currently in a crisis, it can be expensive and complex. Navigating available benefits, legal issues and asset protection is overwhelming and not seeking the assistance of a trusted expert can be costly.

Certified. Compassionate. Competent. Experienced.

W ith more than 50 years of combined legal experience and close to 20 years as a law firm dedicated to elder law, our Certified Elder Law Attorneys help clients prepare for what lies ahead. Whether you are creating your first estate plan, caring for an aging parent, or concerned about yourself or spouse, you can feel confident working with Georgia's most respected elder law firm.

How will you handle the inevitable financial, legal and complex care issues of aging?

Whether you are planning for the future or the future is now, these decisions can be complex, often faced when we are at our most vulnerable.

Call today for a complimentary telephone consultation with one of our intake coordinators 404.843.0121



Dedicated to providing legal solutions for families and individuals as they address the complex process of growing older.

Medicaid Planning • Veterans Benefits • Asset Protection • Estate Planning Guardianship • Conservatorship • Wills • Trusts • Powers of Attorney Life Care Planning • Probate • Community Education • Aging Ally

Hurley Elder Care Law

2727 Paces Ferry Rd SE, Bldg 1, Suite 100, Atlanta, GA 30339 404.843.0121 www.hurleyeclaw.com

Satellite Offices Duluth • Woodstock • Peachtree City

